
 
Selectboard Meeting 6-2-2020  1 

BRATTLEBORO SELECTBOARD 
TUESDAY, JUNE 2, 2020 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:15PM 
HELD REMOTELY VIA GoToMeeting 

MINUTES 
 

NOTE: Per the “Stay Home – Stay Safe” order issued by Governor Scott on March 13, 2020, this 
meeting was held remotely with no physical location using GoToMeeting. 

 
 
Selectboard members in attendance:  Tim Wessel, Elizabeth McLoughlin, Ian Goodnow, Brandie Starr, 
and Daniel Quipp. 
 
Staff participating:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Assistant Town Manager Patrick Moreland, Police Chief 
Mike Fitzgerald, Public Works Director Steve Barrett, Town Clerk Hilary Francis, and Executive Secretary 
Jan Anderson. 
 
Others participating: Andrea Watkins, Wendy Levy, Felicity Ratte, Oscar Heller, Franz Reichsman, ASL 

interpreters Elizabeth Fox and Janet Dickinson  and BCTV staff and volunteers.  

 

Chair Tim Wessel called the meeting to order at 6:15pm.  He confirmed that the meeting was officially 

warned. 

 

APPROVE MINUTES  

Wessel asked the Board to approve the minutes from the May 19, 2020 meeting.  There was no 

discussion. 

 

MOTION BY IAN GOODNOW TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF MAY 19, 2020.  MOTION CARRIED  

5-0.  

 

CHAIR’S REMARKS  

Chair Wessel spoke about the amount of unrest and protests that were taking place at the national level 

and eliciting strong emotions.  He said that he was impressed with the Brattleboro community and Town 

staff during the recent two protests, and that he was appreciative of the community, Police Department, 

and Fire Department in supporting free speech and justice during the unrest in the country. 

 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS  

Town Manager Elwell noted that the organizers of the recent protests communicated and coordinated 

with the Police Department in order to preserve the safety of the event and the community.  He said he 

was appreciative of such collaborative efforts.  

 

SELECTBOARD COMMENTS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Quipp expressed his gratitude to Police Chief Fitzgerald for his op ed recently published in the Reformer, 

and that he appreciated the honesty, even when matters were complicated and difficult to navigate.  He 

stated that public trust and leadership were important, as was an open and honest dialog within the 

community. 

 

Starr thanked Brattleboro Solidarity for its efforts as organizer for the rally over weekend.  She said that 

she was proud of the students who organized today’s protest of the murder of George Floyd in 

Minneapolis.   

 

Goodnow expressed his gratitude toward the organizers and the Town around the protest on Sunday.  He 

said that he encouraged such discourse and respect in order to continue and move forward in solidarity 

for people across the country during this trying time. 

 



 
Selectboard Meeting 6-2-2020  2 

McLoughlin agreed that Sunday’s event was well-organized and said she appreciated the sidewalk chalk 

with names. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Andrea Watkins said she appreciated Chief Fitzgerald’s comments in the Reformer, and noted there were 

still unanswered questions that citizens should ask of the police force.  She suggested setting up a 

community dialog with the Chief to discuss what was being done to hire the right people on the police 

force, with the correct characteristics and morals.  Wessel reminded the public of the existence of the 

Citizen Police Communications Committee, who may be able to assist with dialog with the Police 

Department.  Elwell noted that the Police Department’s hiring process was quite rigorous, that the 

Department did not hire officers just to fill vacancies, and much emphasis was placed on the 

Department’s mission statement and values.  Police Chief Fitzgerald said that the hiring process was 

lengthy and in-depth and the Police Board would ask applicants in the interview process what they did for 

the community.  He offered to meet with Watkins and other community members.   

 

LIQUOR COMMISSIONERS 

 

Second Class Liquor License – Retreat Farm Ltd.  Wessel announced that the applicant had withdrawn 

this application, so the matter was not discussed.   

 

WATER AND SEWER COMMISSIONERS 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO CONVENE AS WATER AND SEWER COMMISSIONERS.  MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0. 

 

FY21 Utility Rate Ordinance – First Reading, Chapter 18 (Water and Sewer) 

(i) Article II (Sewers), Division 5 (Rents), Sec. 18-137 (Sewer Rates), (a) through (c) 

(ii) Article III, (Water), Division 2 (Rates), Sec. 18-163 (Metered Service), (a) and (b) 

 

Elwell said that the Board was asked to hold a first reading on amendments to Chapter 18 of the 

Brattleboro Code of Ordinances to amend the water and sewer rates.  He spoke about the proposed 

increases in the rates, which were contained in his memo dated May 29.  He also spoke about additional 

information requested by the Board at the last meeting, which was included in the memoranda, dated 

May 28, from Public Works Director Barrett and Highway/Utilities Superintendent Tyler.  He also spoke of 

the two tests applied in calculating the rate formula, including (1) maintaining $1 million in the Utilities 

Fund for use in the event of an unexpected and costly emergency, and (2) not allowing the balance in the 

water fund to drop into the negative where it would need to rely on the sewer fund.  There was much 

discussion by the Board about the rates in each of the five years, including whether to adopt a one-year 

rate structure now and re-visit the matter next year when more accurate numbers were available 

regarding the cost of the Water Treatment Plant Replacement Project.  Public Works Director Barrett 

spoke about the rate tool that had been developed for advanced planning in funding the project, and he 

supported the long-range planning so as to be beneficial in obtaining funding for the project.  He 

suggested that if the project came in substantially under budget that rates could be reduced at a later 

point.  Daniel Quipp suggested keeping the water rate increase to 2% for the first year and 6% in the 

subsequent four years, as proposed, but amending the sewer rate increase to 1% for each of the five 

years, which would leave the fund slightly below the $1 million threshold, but would not be reckless.  

There was further discussion about Quipp’s suggestion.  Elwell said that if the Board was interested in 

less of an increase to the sewer rates, as in the “Daniel amendment,” they could leave the first year 

increase at 2% and change subsequent increases to 1% for the following 4 years, then the proposed 

Utilities Fund Budget could be adopted at this meeting with the ordinance amendment to be finalized at 

the next meeting.  The discussion then moved onto the next agenda item – Utilities Fund Budget.   

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 



 
Selectboard Meeting 6-2-2020  3 

FY21 Utilities Fund Budget - Continued Review and Possible Approval.  Elwell said that after the 

substantial discussion and general consensus on the “Daniel amendment” on the above item (proposed 

water and sewer rate increases), and with general approval of the Budget at the last meeting, that the 

Board could move forward with the approval of the Utilities Fund Budget at this time.  There was a brief 

discussion by the Board.  

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO APPROVE THE FY21 UTILITY FUND BUDGET, AS 

PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO ADJOURN AS WATER AND SEWER COMMISSIONERS.  MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

COVID-19 Update 

(i) Overall Update 

(ii) Outdoor Business Activities During Economic Recovery in COVID-19 Emergency 

 

Town Manager Elwell provided an update on Town operations during the ongoing COVID-19 emergency.  

He reported that the Police Department was now responding to calls in-person unless asked otherwise, 

and that the officers were abiding by standard safety protocols, such as wearing masks and gloves and 

maintaining proper social distances.  He announced that the swimming pool at Living Memorial Park 

would open this summer and staff would implement strict restrictions.  He said that reservations would be 

required and visits would be for a limited time period.  He asked interested persons to visit the Recreation 

& Parks page on the Town’s website for more information.  He also announced that the Work Today 

Program, which was created last year by Emilie Kornheiser at Youth Services, was expected to launch in 

July.  He said that the Program would provide employment opportunities on a day-to-day basis for 

individuals with life challenges who wanted occasional work.  He noted that those individuals would work 

with seasonal Town employees in various activities, such as sanitizing and cleaning public equipment that 

was used frequently, including parking meters and porta potties.  There was a brief discussion.   

 

Elwell then spoke about a parklet plan for downtown businesses that wanted to bring their business 

outdoors due to the COVID-19 restrictions imposed by the Governor’s order limiting the amount of people 

in confined spaces.  He said that he had been working with Stephanie Bonin, from Downtown Brattleboro 

Alliance, to develop a partnership where the Town would install Jersey barriers around certain parking 

spaces on Main Street and in parking lots that would provide protection for the shopping public and 

become a dedicated space for establishments to transact business outside.  He said there was capacity 

for up to 12 businesses and that 7 businesses had so far confirmed their desire to participate in the 

program, as set forth in his memorandum dated May 28, 2020.  He said that the Board was asked to 

authorize staff to proceed with the implementation of this plan and authorize the expenditure of up to 

$30,000 from the Program Income Fund as an economic development investment to assist businesses to 

continue to operate through the COVID-19 pandemic.  He said that the Town would purchase and install 

the Jersey barriers for up to 12 parklets, and would also likely incur incidental expenses.  He also said 

that in order to move quickly and not come back to Selectboard meetings for permission to serve alcohol 

in the parklets for the rest of the season, the Board was asked to authorize Town Clerk Hilary Francis to 

administratively permit outside consumption liquor permits in accordance with special licensing provided 

by the State Department of Liquor and Commissioners.  He added that each business would be required 

to execute an agreement.  Wendy Levy  inquired about the definition of parklets and the requirement of 

businesses to add proper decking so it would be at level with sidewalks.  She also inquired about the 

hours of operation.  Felicity Ratte, from the Planning Commission, inquired about establishments adding 

safety messages to their barriers.  There was much discussion by the Board, including liability of the 

establishments, the obligation and responsibility for maintenance, smoking prohibition in the parklet 

spaces, loss of public parking spaces, support by the Planning Commission, and decorating the barriers.   

 



 
Selectboard Meeting 6-2-2020  4 

MOTION BY IAN GOODNOW TO AUTHORIZE THE TOWN CLERK TO APPROVE OUTDOOR 

CONSUMPTION PERMITS IN CONJUNCTION WITH OUTDOOR RESTAURANT USES DURING 

COVID-19.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO AUTHORIZE THE TOWN MANAGER TO ASSIGN PARTICULAR 

PARKLETS TO PARTICULAR BUSINESSES AND TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO 

IMPLEMENT THE PARKLET PROGRAM.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO AUTHORIZE THE EXPENDITURE OF AN AMOUNT NOT 

TO EXCEED $30,000 FOR THE CREATION OF UP TO 12 PARKLETS IN DOWNTOWN 

BRATTLEBORO.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

Chair Wessel called for a recess at 7:53pm. 

Chair Wessel reconvened the meeting at 8:02pm. 

 

FY20 General Fund Budget – Review of Updated Year-End Projections.  Town Manager Elwell provided 

an updated year-end forecast on the FY20 budget, as set forth in his memo dated May 28.  He said that 

that the budget was expected to be over $480,000 higher than staff’s April 30 forecast and he was 

confident that the Town would end the year in a strong financial position in spite of the COVID-19 era.  He 

said that some General Fund balance could be used to assist with capital projects.  Quipp asked whether 

some of those funds could be transferred to the struggling Parking Fund to assist with capital projects in 

the parking infrastructure.  Elwell agreed that could happen but would have to happen by June 30 when 

this fiscal year ends, and could be discussed later in this meeting when discussing the Parking Fund.  He 

offered to bring more information to the Board for action at the June 16 meeting on the Parking Fund.  

There was some discussion by the Board about the FY20 General Fund Budget, including collection of 

property taxes and possible tax abatements. 

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

FY21 General Fund Budget – Review of Recommended Budget and Process of Adoption.  Elwell noted 

that the Selectboard previously recommended a FY21 General Fund Budget for adoption by 

Representative Town Meeting (RTM) but RTM was cancelled due to the COVID-19 state of emergency.  

He said that a special act of the Vermont Legislature allowed the Selectboard to adopt the budget this 

year to ensure the continuity of Town government operations when the new fiscal year began on July 1.  

He said that the previously recommended FY21 budget materials were contained in the Board’s back-up 

materials and he asked the Board to determine whether any additional review was required before the 

Selectboard proceeded to adopt the budget at its June 16 meeting.  Goodnow stated that he would likely 

abstain from the vote because he had not a part of the budget preparation process.  Wendy Levy, a Town 

Meeting Member, stated that she understood the purpose for adopting the budget in this manner but 

cautioned against making it a precedence.  Oscar Heller voiced his opinion that the Board should adopt 

the budget as previously recommended without any changes, including the Human Services funding.  He 

suggested that RTM be given an opportunity to review, and possibly amend, the budget when RTM was 

rescheduled.  McLoughlin thanked Heller for the “mask tree” at Pliny Park and stated this was time for 

more democracy and not less.  There was much discussion by the Board, including the unusual method 

of adopting the budget without RTM’s input, whether RTM would have an opportunity to modify or ratify 

the budget, and whether to seek the Human Services Review Committee’s additional opinion in light of 

the COVID-19 era.  The Board asked staff to add this matter to the June 16 agenda. 

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

FY21 Parking Fund Budget - Continued Review and Possible Approval.  Elwell said that Board heard this 

matter at the last meeting and discussed the lack of operating revenue due to the closure of parking 

enforcement because of COVID-19.  He said the fund was set-up as a break-even budget and the decline 

in revenue had negatively affected the fund.  He said that the FY21 budget assumef revenue and 



 
Selectboard Meeting 6-2-2020  5 

expenditures in a twelve month period, so parking enforcement was expected to start up on July 1.  He 

noted that the Board had authority to transfer funds from the General Fund by June 30, the end of this 

fiscal year, to assist with capital improvements in the parking infrastructure, such as repair the leaky roof 

over one of the retail establishments located in the parking garage.  He said that if the Board was 

considering the transfer, then this item could be added to the June 16 agenda so staff had an opportunity 

to review the amount of transfer to consider.  There was some discussion by the Board, including the 

amount of anticipated lost revenue due to the installation of the parklets in downtown parking spaces, 

possible use of Program Income Fund, and other capital improvements previously scheduled for FY21. 

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

FY21 Solid Waste Budget – Presentation, Review, and Possible Approval.  Elwell said that the Board was 

asked to approve the FY21 Solid Waste Budget.  He said that the fund continued to be strained by the 

success of the operation.  He said that the recycling and compost programs were so successful that the 

sales of the trash bags were negatively affected.  In addition he said that the cost of recycling materials 

had increased substantially over the years.  He said that the fund had operated in the red over the past 

few years and consequently funds were transferred from the General Fund annually.  He said that the 

Board was asked to authorize transfer of $40,000 this year to the Solid Waste Fund from the General 

Fund.  He said that the Board was also asked to incorporate the Solid Waste revenues and expenditures 

into the General Fund so that Solid Waste would no longer operate as a separate operation.  He said that 

the consolidation was recommended by Town staff and by Representative Town Meeting’s Finance 

Committee.  Quipp asked for information on the handing and placement of recyclable materials.  There 

was a brief discussion by the Board.   

 

MOTION BY BRANDIE STARR TO AUTHORIZE A TRANSFER IN THE AMOUNT OF $40,000 FROM 

THE GENERAL FUND TO THE SOLID WASTE FUND, AND TO APPROVE THE FY21 SOLID WASTE 

BUDGET, AS PRESENTED, AND TO APPROVE INCORPORATING ALL SOLID WASTE REVENUES 

AND EXPENDITURES INTO THE ANNUAL GENERAL FUND BUDGET BEGINNING IN FY22.  

MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

Windham Solid Waste Management District’s PILOT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes).  Elwell said that the 

Board was asked to approve a 2-year extension of the Town’s PILOT Agreement with the Windham Solid 

Waste Management District (WSWMD) that required WSWMD to pay the Town an amount equal to 5.5% 

of Brattleboro’s annual WSWMD assessment.  He said that the WSWMD Board supported this 

agreement.  There was a brief discussion by the Board. 

 

MOTION BY DANIEL QUIPP TO APPROVE A TWO-YEAR PILOT AGREEMENT WITH THE 

WINDHAM SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT, AS PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

Representative Town Meeting – Options for How to Hold the Meeting During the Summer of COVID-19.  

Elwell said that the Selectboard was asked to consider options for holding Representative Town Meeting 

(RTM) with the Governor’s COVID-19 restrictions regarding the number of people who may congregate at 

a public gathering and to maintain the required social distancing.  He spoke about the several alternatives 

that were offered in his memo, dated May 29, 2020.  He said that his preferred format was the third 

option, which would be having 5 to 8 venues, with each district being in a one or two separate locations 

and the district chair as that room’s moderator, and connected on a GoToMeeting platform that would be 

broadcast by BCTV.  He added that outdoor locations had been considered but were no longer being 

considered because of concerns about accessibility, restrooms, and inclement weather.  He also spoke 

about holding an Informational Meeting/Discussion where decisions would later be made by Australian 

Ballot.  Elizabeth Fox asked the Board to consider ASL interpreters in the set-up.  Franz Reichsman 

suggested that air circulation in any indoor venue would be undesirable and that circumstances around 

the virus would likely change so plans may have to be changed as the meeting time approached.  There 

was much discussion by the Board, including the complexity of planning such a meeting, the Governor’s 



 
Selectboard Meeting 6-2-2020  6 

order limiting gatherings to a maximum of 25 people, social distancing requirements, ways of preserving 

democracy, outside venue options, sharing microphones, and safety and risk reduction.  The Board 

asked staff to continue to explore options. 

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

Award Bid – Police Department Partial Roof Replacement Project.  Elwell said that the Board was asked 

to award a bid in the amount of $98,860 to The Melanson Company of Keene, New Hampshire, for the 

replacement of the “high roof area” at the Brattleboro Police Department.  He said that the project was 

approved by Representative Town Meeting in 2019 with an expected cost of $100,000.  Two bids were 

received and Melanson’s bid of $98,860 was the lowest.  There was a brief discussion. 

 

MOTION BY BRANDIE STARR TO AWARD A BID IN THE AMOUNT OF $98,860 TO THE MELANSON 

COMPANY FOR REPLACEMENT OF THE “HIGH ROOF AREA” AT THE BRATTLEBORO POLICE 

DEPARTMENT.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

Annual Dog Warrant.  Elwell said that the Board was asked to approve the annual dog warrant to 

enforce the requirement that all dogs in the Town of Brattleboro be vaccinated and licensed.  He said 

that the required statutory language was a part of the warrant, including reference to humane destruction 

of animals that had not been licensed by their owners. He noted that the Town had never exercised that 

authority and had no intention of exercising that authority in the enforcement of the 2020 licenses.  

There was a brief discussion. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO APPROVE THE ANNUAL DOG WARRANT, AS 

PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

Town Committees and Boards - Announce Vacancies.  Elwell said that the Selectboard was asked to 

announce vacancies on various Town boards and committees for the fiscal year beginning on July 1.  He 

read the names of the committees and boards with vacancies and said that the Board was expected to 

make appointments at its meeting on June 16 and subsequent meetings.  There was a brief discussion. 

 

NO ACTION TAKEN. 

 

There was no further business. 

 

MOTION BY ELIZABETH McLOUGHLIN TO ADJOURN AT 10:03PM.  MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Ian Goodnow, Clerk 


